
OFFICE OF THE BOARD OF 

LEGISLATORS 

Lawrence L. Dolhof 

Chairman 

larrydolhof(o)lewiscounty.ny gov LEWIS 
CQUNTY 

NEW YORK 

P: 315-376-5355 
F: 315-376-5445 Cassandra Moser 

Clerk of the Board 

cassandramoser(o)lewiscounty.ny.gov 

TO: Tom Osborne, Chair; Jeff Nellenback, Vice-Chair; Herb Frost Ill; Vincent Nortz; and 
Barry Lyndaker. 

FROM: Cassandra Moser, Clerk of the Board 

DATE: August 15, 2024 

SUBJECT: Finance & Rules Committee Agenda 

Please let this correspondence serve as notification that the Finance & Rules Committee will 
meet on Tuesday, August 20th at 3:00 p.m. in the Board of Legislators' Chambers. Following 
is a list of agenda items for the meeting which will be streamed live at Lewis County -
YouTube. 

Minutes: 

Approve July 23, 2024, committee minutes if no amendments. 

Presentations/Discussion Items: 

1. Solar & GIS Mapping update - Clarkson Interns (10 minutes)
2. Summer Recreation discussion

Draft Resolutions: 

1. Adopting Local Law No. 3-2024 "A Local Law Providing for the Partial Exemption of
Certain Real Property Owned by Persons 65 Years of Age or Over."
AYE NAY

2. Introductory Local Law No. 3-2024 "A Local Law to Authorize Overriding the Tax Levy
Limit Established by General Municipal Law § 3-c (A/K/A "2% Tax Cap") for the Lewis
County 2025 Budget" and setting the public hearing for October 1, 2024 from 5:00 p.m.
to 5:30 p.m.
AYE NAY

3. Adopting County Travel and Food Policy.
AYE NAY

4. Adopting updated and amended Procurement Policy and Procedures.
AYE NAY

5. Adopting amended Purchasing Card Policy and Procedures.
AYE NAY

6. Adopting updated Title VI Plan.
AYE NAY

7660 North State Street• Lowville, NY 13367 • 315-377-2000 • lewiscountyny.gov 

Lewis County is an equal opportunity provider and employer. Complaints at discrimination should be made known to the Lewis County Board of Legislators. 



7. Authorizing a waiver request for a conflict of interest between Snow Belt Housing
Company, Inc. and eligible rehabilitation grant recipient.
AYE NAY

8. Authorizing a renewal agreement between Lewis County and the ARC too provide public
transportation services on the Lewis County Public Transportation fixed routes for a
four-year period in consideration of the ARC reimbursing the County for the costs of the
Fixed Routes and Lowville Loop post estimated STOA reimbursement and in addition the
County is to received reimbursement at the rates specified in the agreement for any ARC
client requiring a bus aide.
AYE NAY

9. Awarding bid and authorizing a three-year agreement between Lewis County and Birnie
Bus Service, Inc. to provide management, operation, and maintenance services for the
County's Coordinated Public Transportation System according to the terms and
specifications as set in the RFP.
AYE NAY

10. Authorizing the Treasurer's Office to charge a fee of $20.00 per tax search performed.
AYE NAY

Motions: 

None. 

Executive Session: 

None. 

Informational Items: 

1. Monthly Department reports are attached for your review.

If any committee member has inquiries regarding agenda items, please do not hesitate
to contact me. 

cc: County Clerk/Records M ngt. 
Economic Development 
Human Resources 
Information Technology 
Insurance/Workers' Compensation 

JCC Education Center 
Planning & Community Development 
Purchasing 
Real Property Tax 
Treasurer 



RESOLUTION NO. - 2024

RESOLUTION ADOPTING AND OTHERWISE TREATING 

LOCAL LAW NO. 3-2024, COUNTY OF LEWIS 

Introduced by Legislator Thomas Osborne, Chair of the Finance & Rules 
Committee. 

WHEREAS, a resolution was duly adopted by the Board of Legislators on August 
6, 2024, directing that a public hearing be held by said Board on September 3, 2024 
from 5:00 p.m. to 5:30 p.m. at the Second Floor Board Room of the County Courthouse, 
7660 North State Street, Lowville, New York 13367, to hear all interested parties on a 
proposed Local Law entitled "A LOCAL LAW PROVIDING FOR THE PARTIAL 
EXEMPTION OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY OWNED BY PERSONS 65 YEARS OF AGE 
OR OVER"; and 

WHEREAS, notice of said public hearing was duly advertised in the Watertown 

Daily Times, the official newspaper designated by the County, on August 28, 2024, and 
posted on the bulletin board of the Lewis County Courthouse, 7660 North State Street, 
Lowville, New York, at least five (5) days prior to such public hearing; and 

WHEREAS, said public hearing was duly held at such location at such time and 
all parties in attendance were permitted an opportunity to speak on behalf of or in 
opposition to said proposed Local Law, or any part thereof; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Legislators wishes to make certain determinations 
based upon the information heretofore submitted to the Board as well as received 
during the public hearing; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, as follows: 

Section 1. This Local Law (Introductory No. 2-2024), County of Lewis, being "A 
LOCAL LAW PROVIDING FOR THE PARTIAL EXEMPTION OF CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTY OWNED BY PERSONS 65 YEARS OF AGE OR OVER" be and the same 
hereby is designated as Local Law No. 3-2024, County of Lewis. 

Section 2. That Local Law No. 3-2024, County of Lewis, with designation stated 
above, be and the same is hereby enacted, waiving any and all defects and informalities 
in the adoption thereof and shall take effect immediately upon filing with the Secretary 
of State. 

Moved by Legislator_, seconded by Legislator_, and adopted pursuant to the 
following roll call vote: 
AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

Page 1 of 41



LOCAL LAW (INTRODUCTORY NO. 3 - 2024) 
COUNTY OF LEWIS 

Introduced by Legislator Thomas Osborne, Chair of the Finance & Rules 

Committee. 

A LOCAL LAW TO AUTHORIZE OVERRIDING THE TAX LEVY LIMIT ESTABLISHED 
BY GENERAL MUNICIPAL LAW § 3-c (A/K/A "2% TAX CAP") FOR THE LEWIS 
COUNTY2025 BUDGET 

BE IT ENACTED by the Board of Legislators of the County of Lewis as follows: 

SECTION 1. TITLE 

This Local Law shall be known as "A LOCAL LAW TO AUTHORIZE OVERRIDING THE 
TAX LEVY LIMIT ESTABLISHED BY GENERAL MUNICIPAL LAW§ 3-c (A/K/A ''2% 
TAX CAP") FOR THE LEWIS COUNTY 2025 BUDGET." 

SECTION 2. LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS 

The Board of Legislators for the County of Lewis hereby finds and determines that 
the anticipated budgetary needs for fiscal year 2025 require that Lewis County 

adopt the appropriate legislation necessary to override the tax levy limit established 

by General Municipal Law§ 3-c, and more commonly referred to as the "2% tax cap". 

SECTION 3. ENACTMENT AUTHORITY 

This Local Law is adopted pursuant to authority provided in section 10 of the 

Municipal Home Rule Law of the State of New York as well as the specific authority 
found in General Municipal Law§ 3-c [5]. 

SECTION 4. OVERRIDE AUTHORIZATION 

The Board of Legislators be and the same is hereby authorized to adopt a budget for 

fiscal year 2025 that exceeds the "tax levy limit" as that term is defined and 
calculated pursuant to the provisions of General Municipal Law§ 3-c. 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE 

This local law shall take effect immediately upon filing with the Secretary of State. 

Page 2 of 41



RESOLUTION NO. - 2024 

FIXING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON LOCAL LAW 

(INTRODUCTORY LOCAL LAW NO. 3-2024), COUNTY OF LEWIS 

Introduced by Legislator Thomas Osborne, Chair of the Finance & Rules 
Committee. 

WHEREAS, there will be presented and introduced at a meeting of this Board 
of Legislators, a proposed Local Law entitled "LOCAL LAW TO AUTHORIZE 
OVERRIDING THE TAX LEVY LIMIT ESTABLISHED BY GENERAL MUNICIPAL LAW§ 
3-C (A/K/A 2% TAX CAP) FOR THE LEWIS COUNTY 2025 BUDGET."

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, as follows: 

Section 1. That a public hearing for the above proposed Local Law will be held 
on October 1, 2024, from 5:00 p.m. to 5:30 p.m., before the Lewis County Board of 
Legislators on the Second Floor Board Room at the Lewis County Courthouse, New 
York, 7660 North State Street, Lowville, New York to hear all persons for or against 
such local law. 

Section 2. That at least five (5) days notice of such hearing shall be given by 
the Clerk of this Board by the due posting thereof upon the bulletin board of the 
Lewis County Court House, Lowville, New York, and by publishing such notice at least 
once in the official newspaper of the County. 

Moved by Legislator_, seconded by Legislator_, and adopted. 

Page 3 of 41



RESOLUTION NO. - 2024

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING AND ADOPTING 

COUNTY TRAVEL AND FOOD POLICY 

FOR LEWIS COUNTY EMPLOYEES 

Introduced by Legislator Thomas Osborne, Chair of the Finance & Rules 
Committee. 

WHEREAS, the Purchasing Director in coordination with the Clerk of the 
Board, developed a comprehensive travel and food policy to be followed by Lewis 
County Employees to ensure that travel is appropriately approved and reimbursed. 
The proposed policy also addresses guidelines to be followed for meal 
reimbursement for County sponsored events; and 

WHEREAS, the attached policy addresses general information, regulations, 
and practices including the steps of approval for traveling, hotelexpense guidelines, 
and business Lunch guidelines; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Legislators wishes to accept and adopt said policy; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, as follows: 

Section 1. The Lewis County Board of Legislators hereby approves and adopts 
the attached Travel and Food Policy for Lewis County Employees as recommended 
by the Director of Purchasing. 

Section 2. The Clerk of the Board is directed to add the policy to the 
administrative and employee handbooks, upon such form as may be approved by the 
County Attorney and Human Resource Director. 

Section 3. The within resolution shall take effect immediately. 

Moved by Legislator_, seconded by Legislator_, and adopted. 

Page 4 of 41



Effective: 

Revised: 

01-39 TRAVEL & FOOD POLICY

September 3, 2024 [Resolution No. 000-2024] 

A. PURPOSE:

1. To ensure that employee travel is appropriately approved and reimbursed
according to County and Departmental policies and procedures. To also make sure
County events involving food are following guidE:ilines.

B. TRAVEL

1. A completed Trip Request form must be submitted for signature prior to the day of
travel, with the exception of emergencies and routine travel due to daily job
requirements. Employees must have their Supervisor sign off; Department Heads
must have the County Manager sign off; County Manager must have the
Chairperson sign off; Legislators must have the Chairperson sign off; Chairperson
must have the Vice-Chairperson sign off; and all out of state trc1vel must have the
Chairperson of the Board sign off after the motion has been approved by the full
board.

2. A copy of the completed Trip Request must be included as documentation with any
expenses incurred for the trip. Routine travel due to daily job requirements are
exempt from needing a Trip Request at the discretion of your Supervisor.

3. Make sure that the reservation for hotel accommodations is in the name of the
employee/Department and give the department address, no personal addresses
should be used.

4. Mileage will be reimbursed at the IRS Rate when using a personal vehicle for travel
outside of Lewis County. Every effort should be made to utilize a County Vehicle.

5. Hotel expenses should not include taxes (except possible Out of State lodging).
Make sure to take a tax-exempt form (ST-129). If taxes are charged it will be the
responsibility of the employee to reimburse the county.

6. Hotel Charges should be at GSA State Rate (check using gsa.gov/travel/plan­
book/per-diem-rates) unless permission is granted by the Department Head. The
County does support using a conference hotel given the benefits derived from
interaction with other attendees or a hotel that is more economical due to
additional charges like parking. It is recommended that the employee ask the
hotel if they will match or honor GSA State Rate.

7. If the event or conference is not located at a hotel or establishment with overnight
accommodations, every effort must be used to make accommodations at a hotel
that will honor the NYS Rate. If there is no hotel within a reasonable radius that
honors it, then all attempts need to be documented in writing.

Page 5 of 41



8. If the destination of your event is more than 2.5 hours away and begins by 9:00
a.m., you are eligible for overnight accommodations the night prior to the start of
the event. The County Manager may allow exceptions to this if justification is
given.

C. MEALS (with using County Purchasing Cards)

1. Meal Allowances will be based on GSA M&IE rates (https://www.gsa.gov/travel/plan­
book/per-diem-rates) for approved travel outside of Lewis County, at the destination
according to the time the travel takes place. Employee is required to print out rates
for documentation.

2. All purchases will require an itemized receipt. Any employee who goes over the
allowable rate per meal or doesn't provide an itemized receipt will be required to
reimburse the county the entire amount or the difference. An employee who chooses
to go over the limit can use the purchasing card to pay for the correct portion and then
pay cash or use their personal card for the additional amount.

3. Under no circumstances should alcohol J:>e purchased on the County Purchasing Card.

4. Meal costs, which are part of a package conference fee, will be allowed even if they
exceed these guidelines. Additionally, employees are not eligible for meal allowances
if the meal is included in the conference and/or hotel fee. This includes continental
breakfast.

5. Employees attendingo.ut-of-county day conferences shall only be eligible to purchase
a lunch, based on the GSA M&IE rates, if the conference registration cost does not
already include lunch. This reimbursement will be taxable wages to County
employees.

6. Departments that receive outsid� reimbursement for meals while traveling must
indicate the total amount of reimbursement that they will be receiving on the trip
request. The GSA M&IE rates will not be increased to reflect outside reimbursement.

D. Incidentals

1. Tipping

a) Tips for taxi cabs will be limited to 15% of the total fare. Itemized receipts for the
taxi cab fares are required for reimbursement.

b) Tips for meals in excess of 15% will be the responsibility of the employee. Meal
expense plus tip cannot exceed the maximum allowable amount as discussed in
Section D.

2. Parking Fees are included as incidentals in the GSA M&IE rates, however if overnight
accommodations are not required, parking fees for day trips can be reimbursed with
an itemized receipt.

E. Light Refreshments

Page 6 of 41



1. The Board of Legislators have identified guidelines that permit the use of appropriated
funds to pay for light refreshments at county events in the following circumstances:

a) Training Events- training is scheduled for more than half the day, information
is exchanged between presenters and the audience, and the group is larger
than 15 attendees, who are not all employees.

b) Award Ceremonies - serving light refreshments at an award ceremony when
employees are publicly recognized for special acts and achievements.

c) Special Grant Programs-serving light refreshments are only authorized when
they are an integral part of the formal program.

d) Employee Appreciation & Recognition Events-where all County Employees are
invited, and the event has been approved by the County Manager, Chair of the
Board of Legislators, and Human Resources Director for the purpose of
employee morale, recognition and wellness.

2. Light Refreshments include but are not limited to, coffee, tea, milk, Juice, soft drinks,
ice cream, donuts, bagels, muffins, fruit, vegetable trays, cheese· trays, pretzels,
cookies, and chips. Light refreshments must be provided in quantities that are not
considered a meal.

3. Departments should exercise prudence when purchasing light refreshments as the
amount spent should be reasonable in relation to the nature, size, and overall cost of
the event.

4. The County cannot use appropriated fu.nds to pay for light refreshments at preliminary
or evening social gatherings or during breaks to merely facilitate social interaction or
to improve the attendance of participants.

5. The County is prohibited from using appropriated funds to pay for meals or light
refreshments at day-to-day internal business meetings.

a) Day-to-day business meetings involve discussions of internal procedures or
operations. Attendance at routine meetings is generally subject to the
prohibition on furnishing meals to employees.

b) The presence of a mealtime speaker between meetings to discuss business,
management and day-to-day operations does not provide an adequate basis
for providing meals or light refreshments.

F. Business Lunches

1. Cost of meals for employee and guests will be reimbursable only if such a meeting will
promote a county purpose and has been authorized by the County Manager or Chair of
the Board of Legislators. Requests for reimbursement must state the number of
guests and topics discussed. A valid itemized receipt must accompany the claim.
Absolutely no alcohol purchases are reimbursable.

Page 7 of 41



G. Exceptions

1. The County Manager may authorize an exception based on valid justification on a

case-by-case basis. The exception must be documented on County Manager

letterhead with signature and attached with receipts as valid documentation.

H. Effective Date

1. This policy shall be effective September 3, 2024, and will be reviewed annually with

any recommended amendments to be authorized and adopted by the Lewis County

Board of Legislators by Resolution. If subsequent changes occur in New York State or

Federal Laws which are inconsistent with this Travel & Food Policy, or if any part of

this policy as adopted is in violation of state or federal law, state or federal law shall
control the travel & food practices of the County of Lewis.

Page 8 of 41



RESOLUTION NO. - 2024

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT UPDATED AND AMENDED 

PROCUREMENT POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

FOR THE COUNTY OF LEWIS 

Introduced by Legislator Thomas Osborne, Chair of the Finance & Rules 
Committee. 

WHEREAS, in March, 2022, the Board of Legislators created the position and 
appointed Brian Hanno as the Purchasing Director, whose duties include review of 
the County procurement policy; and 

WHEREAS, the Purchasing Director, Clerk of the Board, and County Attorney 
reviewed the procurement policy and revised same to include the establishment of 
the Purchasing Director position duties and responsibilities, with additional changes 
as more fully set forth in the proposed updated Procurement Policy attached; and 

WHEREAS, the Lewis County Board of Legislators wishes to adopt the 
changes set forth in the proposed Amended Procurement Policy pursuant to GML 
§104-b;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, as follows: 

Section 1. The Lewis County Board of Legislators hereby approves the 
adoption of the updated amendments to the Lewis County Procurement Policy as set 
forth in the attached amended policy in accordance with General Municipal Law § 
104-b.

Section 2. The Clerk of the Board is hereby directed to update the 
Administrative Manual to include the revised Procurement Policy herein adopted and 
attached, and distribute the same to all Department Heads. 

Section 3. That the within resolution shall take effect immediately. 

Moved by Legislator_, seconded by Legislator_, and adopted. 

Page 9 of 41



Effective: 

Revised: 

04-02 PROCUREMENT POLICY & PROCEDURES

February 5, 1992 [Resolution No. 26-1992] 

April 7, 2009 [Resolution No. 149-2009] 
August 6, 2013 [Resolution No. 319-2013] 
April 7, 2015 [Resolution No. 124-2015] 
July 5, 2017 [Resolution No. 260-2017] 
August 6, 2019 [Resolution No. 261-2019] 
June 7, 2022 [Resolution No. 133-2022] 
September 3, 2024 [Resolution No. 000-2024] 

A. PURPOSE:

1. Goods and services which are not required by law to be procured pursuant to
competitive bidding must be procured in a manner so as to assure the prudent and
economical use of public money, in the best interests of the taxpayers, to facilitate
the acquisition of goods and services of maximum quality at the lowest possible
cost under the circumstances, and to guard against favoritism, improvidence,
extravagance, fraud and corruption. To further these objectives, the governing
board is adopting internal policies and proced(.!res governing all procurements of
goods and services which are not required to be made pursuant to the competitive
bidding requirements of General Municipal Law, §103 or of any other general, special
or local law.

B. ESTABLISHMENT OF PURCHASING DIRECTOR POSITION AND COMPLIANCE WITH

GENERAL MUNICIPAL LAW §104:

1. The Lewis County Bqard of Legislators created the position of Purchasing Director
pursuant to Resolution No. 63- 2022; adopted on March 1, 2022. The Purchasing
Director (aka Purchasing Agent) shall be responsible for developing and
administering a modified central purchasing system to make provisions for all
purchases, servicing, sale, lease, and rental of materials, supplies, equipment and
services for all departments and agencies of Lewis County Government pursuant to
and in compliance with the applicable provisions of laws and regulations and County
policy.

2. The Purchasing Director shall have signatory authority on all purchase requisitions
and purchase orders. The Purchasing Director shall assist County Departments, as
necessary, and review the procurement activities of said Departments to ensure
compliance with the NYS General Municipal Law (GML) and County policy. The
Purchasing Director will require written explanations and documentation from
Department(s) when purchasing policies and procedures are not followed and will
withhold authorization until such documentation is received and procedures
followed. The Purchasing Director shall report any noncompliance with procedures
and necessary corrective action(s) to the County Manager.

3. The Purchasing Director, in consultation with the County Attorney and Department
Heads determines if a transaction is a purchase contract, public works contract, or
professional service, and what proceedings shall be followed depending

1 Page 10 of 41



upon the transaction and amount, pursuant to the provisions and procedures 
hereinafter more fully set forth in this policy. 

4. The Purchasing Director or designee shall be responsible for all required public
advertising and competitive bidding procedures, including final draft of any RFPs
which are not the responsibility of an engineering consultant on a public works
project. The Purchasing Director shall work with the Department Head in creating
the RFP, conduct all bid solicitations, attend bid openings and evaluations in
determining any recommendation for awarding bids and contracts to the
appropriate legislative committee and to the Board of Legislators.

5. Pursuant to GML §104-b (2) (f), the procurement policy requires municipalities to
identify the individual or individuals responsible for purchasing and their respective
titles biennially. Effective June 7, 2022, Brian Hanno, Purchasing Director for the
County of Lewis is appointed as the County's responsible purchaser. The County
Manager is appointed as first alternate responsible purchaser, and the Chairman of
the Lewis County Board of Legislators is appointed as second plternate responsible
purchaser.

C. PROCEEDINGS FOR DETERMINING WHETHER PROCUREMENTS ARE SUBJECT TO

BIDDING:

1. Every purchase to be made must be initially reviewed to determine whether it is a
purchase contract or a public works contract. Once that determination is made, a
good faith effort will be made to deterl')1ine whether it is known or can reasonably be
expected that the aggregate amount to be spent on the item of supply or service is
not subject to competitive bidding, 'taking into account past purchases and the
aggregate amount to be spent in a year. The following items are not subject to
competitive bidding pursuant to §103 of the General Municipal Law: purchase
contracts under $20,000.00 and public works contract under $35,000.00;
emergency purchases; sole source purchases; goods purchased from agencies for
the blind or disabled; goods purchased from correctional institutions; purchases
under state contracts; surplus and second-hand purchases from another
governmental entity; professional service contracts, purchase made for reasons of
efficiency or economy (subject to General Municipal Law §103, subdivision 5) and
hospital purchases under joint contracts (subject to General Municipal Law §103,
subdivision 8).

2. The decision that a purchase is not subject to competitive bidding is required to be
documented in writing by the Department Head in consultation with the Purchasing
Director. This documentation may include written or verbal quotes from vendors, a
memo from the Department purchaser indicating how the decision was arrived at, a
copy of the contact indicating the source which makes the item or service exempt, a
memo from the Department purchaser detailing the circumstances which led to an
emergency purchase, or any other written documentation that is appropriate or
requested by the Purchasing Director, County Attorney, or County Manager.

D. GENERAL PROCEDURES:

1. The county shall purchase materials, supplies, equipment, and services as required,

2 Page 11 of 41



at the best possible prices and maintain appropriate documentation, subject to and 
as outlined in "C.1." and "C.2." hereafter set forth, as follows: 

a) Purchases will be secured by use of written requests for proposals, written
quotations, verbal quotations, or any other method that assures that goods
will be purchased at the lowest price and that favoritism will be avoided.

b) Proper written documentation (acceptable to the respective Department
Head and Purchasing Director) by the individual making the purchase, will be
required whenever a contract is awarded to other than the lowest
responsible bidder. This documentation will include an explanation of how
and why the individual came to their decision of awarding the bid.

c) Purchase contracts for materials, supplies and equipment involving an
estimated annual expenditure in excess of $20,000.00 and public works
contracts in excess of $35,000.00 shall be awarded only after public
advertising soliciting formal bids pursuant to §103 of the General Municipal
Law.

d) Purchases will be made to the extent practicable, through available state
contracts of the office of General Services, Division of Standards and
Purchase, Department of Correctional Services, New York State Industries
for the Disabled, Industries for the Blind of New York State, and surplus and
second-hand purchases from another governmental entity, whenever such
purchases are in the best interest of the county.

e) The Purchasing Director or designee shall be responsible for all required
public advertising, competitive bidding and shall conduct all bid solicitations.
Bids shall be opened by the Purchasing Director or designee, with the Clerk
of the Board, and appropriate County Department present. The County
Manager, Legislative Committee members and others may also be present.
The Department Head, Purchasing Director and any experts involved in the
project shall review the submissions and report same with a recommendation
to the County Manager.

f) All contracts which require public advertising and competitive bidding shall
be awarded as provided by law and the rules and regulations of the county.

g) No official or employee of the County shall have a direct financial or
controlling interest in any contract entered into by the County, unless
disclosed and in compliance as more fully described in the Lewis County
Ethics Law.

h) No County employee having official responsibility for a procurement
transaction shall solicit, demand, accept or agree to accept from a bidder,
offerer, contractor, or subcontractor any payment, loan, subscription,
advance, deposit of money, services or anything, including a gift, present or
promise of more than nominal or minimal value in excess of $75.00, unless
consideration of substantially equal or greater value is exchanged. The
County may recover the value of anything conveyed in violation of this

3 Page 12 of 41



section. 

i) Positive efforts shall be made by the County to use small, minority owned,
and women owned businesses as sources for supplies and services if
feasible.

j) Commonly used supplies by county departments shall be uniform whenever
consistent with operational needs in the interest of efficiency and economy.

E. AUTHORIZED LIMITS AND CONTROL:

1. Periodically and at least once a year, the Purchasing Director, after consultation
with Department Heads, shall review and evaluate the rules and regulations
contained in this policy to see whether any change(s) is indicated pursuant to law or
to more accurately reflect the market pricing, inflation, processing expenses, and
the county's utilization experience.

2. The following authorized dollar limits are effective September 3, 2024. These limits
are applicable per total purchase transaction, provide for departmental delegation
and discretion, and require documentation as �pecified.

Transaction Dollar Limit Process 

Purchase of Public Works 

materials, supplies & 
equipment 

$0.01 - $1,499.99 $0.01 - $1,499.99 Vendor selected by Department Head and 
payment is processed through Financial 
System. 

$1,500.00- $9,999.99 $1,500.00- $14,999.99 Department Head submits telephone quotes 
from at least three (3) separate vendors (if 
available) to Purchasing Director. 

Low quote taken unless valid exception, 
!Which exception must be documented in 
rwriting. 

Purchasing Director approves purchase and 
payment processed through Financial 
System. 

$10,000.00- $19,999.99 $15,000.00-$34,999.99 Department Head submits written quotes 
(from at least three (3) separate vendors (if 
available) to Purchasing Director. 

Low quote taken unless valid exception, 
!Which exception must be documented in 
!Writing. 

Purchasing Director approves and payment 
is processed through Financial System. 

4 Page 13 of 41



$20,000.00 and up $35,000.00 and up Department Head completes written RFP 
specifications with assistance of Purchasing 
Director. 

Purchasing Director advertises for 
competitive sealed bids. 

Contract or purchase order issued pursuant 
to adopted resolution by the Board of 
Legislators awarding the bid. 

3. Pursuant to General Municipal Law §104-b (2) (f), the procurement policy may
contain circumstances when, or types of procurements for which, in the sole
discretion of the governing body, the solicitation of alternative proposals or
quotations will not be in the best interest of the municipality. In the following
circumstances it may not be in the best interests of the County of Lewis to solicit
quotations or document the basis for not accepting the lowest bid:

a) Professional/Expert Services

Professional services or services requiring special or technical skill, training 
or expertise. The individual or company must be chosen based on 
accountability, reliability, responsibility, skill, education and training, 
judgment, integrity, and moral worth. These qualifications are not necessarily 
found in the individual or company that offers the lowest price and the nature 
of these services are such that they do not readily lend themselves to 
competitive procurement procedures. The County Attorney, after consulting 
with the Purchasing Director, shall determine whether a service fits into this 
category, taking into consideration the following guidelines: 

• whether the services are subject to state licensing or testing
requirements;

• whether substantial formal education or training is a necessary
prerequisite to the performance of the services; and

• whether the services require a personal relationship between the
individual and municipal officials. Professional or technical services
shall include but not be limited to the following: services of an
attorney; services of a physician; technical services of an engineer or
architect engaged to prepare plans, maps and estimates; securing
insurance coverage and/or services of an insurance broker; services of
a certified public accountant; investment management services;
printing services involving extensive writing, editing or art work;
management of municipally owned property; and computer software
or programming services for customized programs, or services
involved in substantial modification and customizing of pre- packaged
software.

5 Page 14 of 41



b) Emergency Purchases

Pursuant to Section 103(4) of the General Municipal Law, and due to the
nature of this exception, these goods or services must be purchased
immediately and a delay in order to seek alternate proposals may threaten
the life, health, safety, property or welfare of the residents. This section does
not preclude alternate proposals if time permits.

During Normal Office Hours

1) The requisitioning department calls the Purchasing Director and gives
the following information:

i) Reason for emergency purchase.
ii) Department name and budget code.
iii) Complete description and cost of services or materials to be

purchased.
iv) Name and address of recommended vendor.

2) The Purchasing Director or designee determines if the purchase is in
fact an emergency. If so, a vendor will be selected. Vendors with
immediate delivery of materials or services are given preference in the
selection.

3) The County Treasurer will verify if budgetary appropriations are
available. If not, the requisitioning department will obtain approval
from the County Manager.

4) A purchase order number is assigned and verbally given to the vendor.

5) The requisitioning department will process payment in the financial
system, which will include the information in numbers 1 and 3 above.

Outside Normal Office Hours 

1) When an emergency need is identified outside of the normal office
hours of Purchasing, and immediate action is required to correct the
threat to the safety, health or welfare of the public, the responsible
Department has the authority to procure the goods or services
necessary to correct the problem without obtaining prior approval
from Purchasing, but should be in contact with the County Manager to
advise of the emergency and need.

2) The purchase must be reported to Purchasing on the next working day
to obtain the required purchase order number. The remaining process
shall be followed in the same manner as set forth above.

c) Sole Source

Sole source purchases are appropriate when it is clearly determined that
there is only one vendor capable of providing a particular material or service.

6 Page 15 of 41



Justification for sole source purchases include the following: purchase order 
is made to the original manufacturer or provider; there are no regional 
distributors, or parts/equipment are not interchangeable with similar parts of 
another manufacturer, or it is the only known item that will meet the 
specialized needs of the department or perform the intended function; 
purchases required by contractual obligations; or standardization approved 
by the County Legislature. 

1) Whenever a Department Head believes that materials or services,
they require are only available or appropriate from a sole source
vendor, he/she shall complete a purchase requisition and forward it to
the Purchasing Director or designee for approval. Documentation
must be attached to the requisition.

2) If approved, the purchase requisition will be processed in the normal
procedure.

d) Control

Control involves not only compliance with required purchasing procedures, 
but also affects the paperwork necessary. "Over-papering" can ruin the 
effectiveness of the system almost as quickly as non-compliance. The 
requirements of quotations are waived for the following exceptions, 
established upon a determination of operational efficiencies and economies: 

• Petty cash reimbursements

• Utility bills

• Interdepartmental charges

• Medical expenses

• Legal notices

• Postage costs

• Memberships and dues

• Subscriptions for Law Research

• Mileage, travel, conference reimbursements

• Food forprisonera

• Other expenses determined by the County Manager and Purchasing
Director on an individual basis.

F. PIGGYBACKING

1. General Municipal Law103(16) allows procurement of certain goods (including
apparatus, materials, equipment, and supplies) and services through contracts let
by the United States or any agency thereof, any state or any other political
subdivisions or district therein, if such contract was let in a manner consistent with
competitive bidding and has been made available for use by other governmental
agencies. The County shall take advantage of such contracts when doing so ensures
that the County is buying goods at the lowest price. In addition, Lewis County will
allow other municipalities within New York State to "piggyback" on the contracts of
Lewis County in accordance with GML 103.

7 Page 16 of 41



2. Pursuant to Subsection 1-b of Section 103 of the GML, the County shall have the
option of purchasing information technology and telecommunications hardware,
software and professional services through cooperative purchasing permissible
pursuant to Federal General Services Administration information schedule 70 and
any successor schedule, provided the County complies with federal schedule
ordering procedures as provided in the applicable federal acquisition regulation(s).

3. The Purchasing Director shall make available to other municipalities within the
County the opportunity to participate, whenever practicable, in the County's
contracts or competitive bids.

4. Purchases may be made through available state contracts of the NYS Office of
General Services, GSA, or in accordance with Sub. 3 of GML 103 which allows the
purchases of materials, equipment or supplies, or the contract for services, other
than services subject to Article 9 of the Labor Law, through any municipality within
New York State, whenever such purchases are in the best interest of the County, as
follows:

a) In lieu of obtaining quotations or issuing formal bids for the purchase of
commodities or services not subject to Article 9 of the New York State Labor
Law, the Purchasing Director is authorized to make such purchases using
established national and regional cooperative contracts.

b) In accordance with GML 103(6), surplus and secondhand supplies, materials
or equipment may be purchased without competitive bidding from the
Federal Government, State of New York, or from any other political
subdivision, district, or public benefit corporation.

5. Although a Department may request a purchase be made using a particular contract
source, the decision as to the appropriate contract source to be used will be that of
the Purchasing Director in consultation with the County Attorney. Detailed and
appropriate documentation of the reason(s) for the determination shall be retained
by the Purchasing Director.

G. AUTHORITY TO AWARD CONTRACTS BASED ON BEST VALUE UNDER LOCAL LAW

NO. 7-2013:

1. For purposes of this Policy, the following terms shall be deemed to have the
meaning set forth:

a) "Best value" shall mean the basis upon which a contract may be awarded
after a competitive bid for the purchase or goods or services to the bidder
which optimizes quality, cost, and efficiency, among responsive and
responsible bidders. Such basis shall reflect, wherever possible, objective
and quantifiable analysis. Such basis may also identify a quantitative factor
for bidders that are small businesses or certified minority, or women-owned
business enterprises as defined in subdivisions one, seven, fifteen and
twenty of section three hundred ten of the executive law to be used in
evaluation of offers for awarding of contracts for services. Factors that may
be used to determine the '-'best value" and to award a contract to other than

8 Page 17 of 41



the lowest bidder, are: 
• cost of maintenance for good(s) or service(s);
• durability of good(s) or service(s);
• quality of good(s) or service(s); or
• product life of good(s) or service(s)

b) "Purchasing Agent" shall mean the appropriate officer, board, legislative
committee or agency of Lewis County, consistent with the purchasing policy
established (and as may be amended from time to time) by the Board of
Legislators, to have the authority to award purchase contracts on the basis of
"best value" as defined herein.

2. Authority to Award Contracts:

a) The Purchasing Agent may award purchase contracts, including contracts for
service work, but excluding any purchase contracts necessary for the
completion of a public works 2ontract pursuant to Labor Law Article 8, on the
basis of best value, as defined in State Finance Law §163, to a responsive and
responsible bidder.

b) Where the basis for award is the best value offer, the Purchasing Director
shall document, in the procurement record and in advance of the initial
receipt of offers, the determination of the evaluation criteria, which
whenever possible, shall be quantifiable, and the process to be used in the
determination of best value and the manner in which the evaluation process
and selection shall be conducted.

c) Where appropriate, the solicitation shall identify the relative importance
and/or weight of cost and the overall technical criterion to be considered by
the Purchasing Agent in their determination of best value.

d) The election to award any such contract on the basis of best value shall be
made by the Purchasing Agent in consultation with the Department Head and
appropriate Legislative committee. In the event that no such election is
made, purchase contracts will continue to be awarded to the lowest
responsible bidder furnishing any required security in accordance with the
Lewis County Purchasing Policy.

H. VIOLATIONS

1. Department Heads are responsible for their departments' and employees'
compliance with this policy. Deviation from this policy may delay purchasing or
payment. Violations of this policy will be reported to the County Manager for
corrective action.

I. EFFECTIVE DATE

1. This policy shall be effective September 3, 2024, and will be reviewed annually as
required by General Municipal Law 104-b, with any recommended amendments to be

9 Page 18 of 41



authorized and adopted by the Lewis County Board of Legislators by Resolution. If 
subsequent changes occur in New York State or Federal Laws which are 
inconsistent with this Purchasing Policy, or if any part of this policy as adopted is in 
violation of state or federal law, state or federal law shall control the purchasing 

practices of the County of Lewis. 

Page 19 of 41



RESOLUTION NO. -2024

RESOLUTION AMENDING PURCHASING CARD 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

FOR THE COUNTY OF LEWIS 

Introduced by Legislator Thomas Osborne, Chair of the Finance & Rules 
Committee. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 257 - 2021, the Board of Legislators 
adopted a Purchasing Card (credit card) Policy and Procedures for Lewis County 
Departments, and authorized the Treasurer to enter into a credit card agreement 
with JP Morgan Chase Bank, NY for this program; and 

WHEREAS, the Director of Purchasing, the Clerk of the Board, and County 
Attorney reviewed the purchasing policy and revised same to include additional 
changes to the policy to ensure better security and auditing practices as more fully 
set forth in the proposed Amended Purchasing Card Policy attached; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 

Section 1. The Lewis County Board of Legislators hereby adopts the attached 
Amended Purchasing Card Policy and Procedures for Department use of credit cards, 
as authorized by the County Manager. 

Section 2. The Board directs the Clerk of the Board to add this amended policy 
to the Administrative Manual and any other appropriate manuals, and to distribute 
same to the Lewis County Department Heads. 

Section 3. That this Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

Moved by Legislator_, seconded by Legislator_, and adopted. 

Page 20 of 41



04-04 PURCHASING CARD POLICY & PROCEDURES

Effective: October 5, 2021 [Resolution No. 257-2021] 

Revised: September 3, 2024 [Resolution No. 000-2024] 

A. PURPOSE:

1. The Purchasing Card is intended to streamline and simplify the purchasing process.
The Purchasing Card is a tool that reduces transaction costs, facilitates timely
acquisition of materials and supplies, automates data flow for accounting purposes,
and offers flexible controls to help ensure proper usage.

2. The Purchasing Card is designed as an alternative to a variety of processes including
petty cash, check requests, and low dollar purchase orders. The Purchasing Card is
not intended to bypass appropriate procurement guidelines. The Policy compliments
the existing processes available and is to be used in accordance with the guidelines
established by the Lewis County Board of Legislators as detailed in this policy. County
purchasing cards should be treated with the same sense of responsibility and security
an individual would use with their personal credit card. The program will be initiated
with a Visa card issued by JP Morgan Chase bank. This could change in the future, but
the basic mechanics of the policy and procedure will not change.

B. Obtaining a Purchasing Card for Employees:

1. All Purchasing Cards will be issued at the discretion of the Purchasing Director from
the request of Department Heads. Card usage will be audited and can be restricted
and/or rescinded at any time. Cards will be issued to Departments on an as needed
basis and at the request of the Department Head. Specific individuals in each
department will be authorized to use the card based on approval of the Department
Head.

2. The application / request form includes a credit limit amount. This should be based
on reasonable expected purchase volumes. The authorized employee and Department
Head must sign the application and provide it to the Purchasing Director for final
approval and signature. The card is the property of Lewis County and is only to be
used for county purchases as defined in this guide. Approved card users are the only
persons authorized to use their department card.

3. After reading and understanding this Purchasing Card Policy and Procedures, the
Department Head or individual card user will sign the Card holder Acknowledgement.

4. Only employees of Lewis County are eligible to use a Purchasing Card. The
authorized card user is responsible for the security of the card and the transactions
made against the card.

5. Departments will keep all credit cards in a secure place in the office. Cards will not
be carried on a regular basis by any staff member. After use, a card will be returned
to the secure location. It is the Department Head's responsibility to secure the card
and develop a system to release the card for use as needed.

Page 21 of 41



C. Cardholder Responsibilities and Consequences for Misuse:

1. The Purchasing Card is intended for purchases such as services, supplies, materials,
lodging, dues, and conference registrations. The Purchasing Card will not be used for
any of the items on the list of restricted transactions (D.1) and should be used in
conformity with current procurement guidelines. Individual authorizations for dollar
limits and types of transactions will vary by department.

2. It is important to remember that county funds are committed each time the
purchasing card is used. This is a responsibility that should not be taken lightly. The
card user is responsible for all charges made to the card which has been issued to the
department. Misuse or fraudulent abuse may result in disciplinary action up to and
including dismissal. Though the card lists a department and/or an individual's name,
the card is legally issued to Lewis County. The card will have no impact on an
individual's personal credit.

3. Violation or misuse of the Purchasing Card can be categorized by one or more of the
following list of activities (this list is not deemed absolute, there may be other
examples of misuse not specifically stated here):

a) Purchase of items for personal use.
b) Failure to reconcile expenses, attach itemized receipts and forward to Audit

(Clerk of the Board) by the deadline establish�d.
c) Use of the Card for items clearly defined as "Not for Card use".
d) Allowing an individual that is not an authorized user to access and use the

purchasing card.

4. Misuse of the Pun:::hasing Card will lead to disciplinary action which can include any
one or combination of the following - to be determined by the County Manager,
Human Resources Director, and County Attorney:

a) Suspension of card privilege
b) Revocation of the card
c) Reimbursement of costs incurred
d) Suspension of employment
e) Termination of employment

5. Cardholders are responsible for informing the vendors that Lewis County is exempt
from sales tax. The County's tax-exempt status is printed on the card. Sales tax
should not be paid by the county except for meals. If a transaction is assessed sales
tax on phone, Internet, or mail orders the tax is to be adjusted on the statement before
processing for approvals; if the credit does not get applied until the next monthly
statement, the cardholder must note on the Munis invoice submission that a credit
has been requested and will be on the next statement.

6. Refunds and exchanges must be credited directly back to the Purchasing Card
account. Under no circumstances shall cash or gift / debit cards be received for
refunds or exchanges.

Page 22 of 41



7. The Purchasing Card should be treated with the same level of security as cardholders
treat their own personal credit cards. Lost or stolen cards must be immediately
reported to the Department Head; the Department Head is to report the lost/stolen
card to the Purchasing Director. Replacement of the Purchasing Card must be
authorized by the Purchasing Director.

8. Unauthorized expenditures may be recovered by the County from the employee by
any legal means as advised/initiated by the County Attorney.

D. Purchasing Card Restrictions:

1. Departmental and Individual Cards are not to be used for:
a) Alcohol, Liquor, Tobacco, or Cannabis
b) Amusement and Entertainment Venues
c) Banks, ATM's, and Financial Institutions
d) Personal Service such as Salons, Spas, Dry Cleaners, etc.

2. New York State Sales and Use Tax. The County of Lewis is a tax-exempt organization.
Therefore, Sales Tax should not be paid on in-State purchases made with the
Purchasing Card.

a) To make tax exempt purchases, a user may be required to present vendors
with documentation that confirms the county's tax-exempt status. The County
has a standard letter that identifies the county as a "governmental entity" and
documents its exemption from New York State sales and use taxes. This letter
will be attached with this policy and can be requested from the Treasurer's
office. For Hotel/ Motel stays, the employee should have a completed ST-129,
"Exemption Certificate" specific to the date and facility for the hotel/ motel
stay. This form is included in this policy.

b) Use of the card to execute transactions that include New York State sales/use
taxes may result in user repayment of the sales tax charge and/or the
revocation of the card holder's eligibility to participate in the program.

3. Separation of Employment

a) If an authorized user who has a card issued in his/her personal name leaves
County employment, he/she must return the Purchasing Card to the
Department Head and notify the Treasurer's Office. The Department Head is
responsible for ensuring the card is reconciled and returned to the Treasurer's
Office to be cancelled prior to the separation of employment or actual ending
date. If not performed by the Treasurer, the Purchasing Card shall be
sufficiently destroyed, and evidence of its destruction presented to the
County Treasurer. The Department Head is responsible for submitting the final
statement to the Treasurer's office with all receipts attached.

b) If an employee is on extended leave or disability, the Department Head should
contact the County Treasurer to have the card "suspended" until the
Cardholder returns to work.

Page 23 of 41



4. Audits of the Program

a) All card purchases will be audited to confirm that the Purchasing Cards are
utilized responsibly, itemized receipts are retained, and the Cardholder's
statements are being reconciled on a timely basis.

5. Conferences & Lodging

a) For lodging within New York State, a user will need to secure a lodging tax
exemption ST-129 form and a sales tax exemption ST-121 form to be presented
upon check in. If traveling out of state, the NYS ST-129 and ST-121 should be
presented as some vendors do accept it and not charge lodging tax or sales
tax.

b) A Travel Request form must be completed and approved by the Department
Head prior to booking and charging to the Purchasing Card.

E. What you need to know about Security

1. Departmental and individual cards must be kept secure and should be used only be
authorized users. It is the Department Head's responsibility to determine users for
their Department Card and to approve Individual Card holders. The Individual Cards
are non- transferable - meaning that no one else should use the card other than the
individual named. The Department Head and Individual card holders are ultimately
responsible for charges to the cards except for verifiable cases of fraudulent use.

2. If a Purchasing Card is used fraudulently - such as an unauthorized purchase using
the Visa card number- the individual or Department will not be responsible for that
purchase(s). The Treasurer's office should be contacted immediately if there is
suspected fraudulent use so they can contact JP Morgan Chase Customer Service.

3. Procedure for Lost and/or Stolen Credit Card

a) Immediately advise Department Head and Purchasing Director.

b) Department Head or Treasurer's office contact the JP Morgan Chase
Customer Service at 1-800-270- 7760 to report a lost/stolen card and to
initiate a replacement card.

F. Required Action for all Purchases

1. Follow current Procurement Policy - any purchase over $1,500 must have proposals
or bids.

2. Follow proper permission requirements for credit card use from appropriate
supervisor.

3. Procure an itemized receipt or invoice with receiving records for each purchase.

4. After Upload from JP Morgan is complete, prepare transactions for processing in

Page 24 of 41



Munis. 

a) All transactions must be converted from Purchase Card Statement and
Released to Invoice Entry

b) Every transaction must have itemized receipt or invoice attached as

documentation. Documentation totals must match Purchasing card charge.

Receiving records must be included on invoices requiring shipment. Any

required trip requests and proposals or bids must be provided as well.

c) Invoices will then be released into workflow for approval by the Department
Head, Purchasing Director and then to the Auditor.

d) Payments will be processed in the Regular Check Run.

G. Effective Date

1. This policy shall be effective September 3, 2024, and will be reviewed annually
with any recommended amendments to be authorized and adopted by the Lewis
County Board of Legislators by Resolution. If subsequent changes occur in New
York State or Federal Laws which are inconsistent with this Purchasing Card
Policy, or if any part of this policy as adopted is in violation of state or federal law,
state or federal law shall control the purchasing card practices of the County of
Lewis.

Page 25 of 41



Acknowledgment of Purchasing Card Holder Agreement and Receipt of Purchasing Card 

Please read and sign this form. 

Employee Name: _ __ ______ ___ Department: __________ _ 

Card Number: Monthly limit is:$ 
--------------- --------

You are being entrusted with a Lewis County Purchasing Card issued by Visa through JP 
Morgan Chase Bank. The card is provided to you to for purchases of materials or services on 
behalf of Lewis County. The card may be revoked at any time without your permission. 

• I understand that I will be making financial commitments on behalf of Lewis County and
will strive to obtain the best value when making purchases.

• This purchasing card is issued in my, or my Department's name. I will not allow any other
person to use the assigned card.

• I have read the Lewis County Purchasing Card Policy as well as this card holder
agreement, understand them, and I will comply with both. Failure to do so may be
considered misappropriation of funds and may subject me to revocation of card privileges
and disciplinary action.

• I understand that the policies and procedures related to the Purchasing Card may be
updated or changed at any time. The Card Administrator will notify me of these changes.
I agree to and will be responsible for the execution of any program changes.

• I will use the card only for authorized purchases.
• I will obtain an electronic or hard copy itemized receipt from the vendor each time the

card is used. When ordering by phone or via the Internet, I will request the vendor provide
me with an itemized receipt. If the itemized receipt is lost and cannot be replaced by the
vendor, any charges will be paid at my expense.

• I understand that my card account is subject to internal control reviews and audits to
protect the interests of Lewis County and I agree to comply with these reviews and
audits.

• I am responsible for immediately notifying JP Morgan Chase Bank, my Supervisor, and
the Purchasing Director if the card is lost or stolen. I will complete the Lost or Stolen Card
form and submit it to the Purchasing Director.

• Upon resignation/separation, or the request of my Department Head, or the Purchasing
Director, I will turn in the card to my Department Head.

Your signature below indicates that you have read the Purchasing Card Policy and will 
comply with the terms of this agreement. 

Employee Signature: Date: 
--------- -- - - -- - -- - - - - - --

Purchasing Director: Date: 
--------------- ----------

Page 26 of 41



RESOLUTION NO. - 2024

RESOLUTION ADOPTING LEWIS COUNTY TITLE VI PROGRAM PLAN 

Introduced by Legislator Thomas Osborne, Chair of the Finance & Rules 
Committee. 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the 
Lewis County Title VI Program Plan was drafted to reaffirm the County's policy to 
allow all individuals the opportunity to participate in federal financially assisted 
services; and 

WHEREAS, as a recipient of federal and state funds, Lewis County is subject 
to the requirements and provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as 
amended; and 

WHEREAS, the provIsIons include, but are not limited to, prohibiting 
discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, being denied the 
benefits of, or other subjected to discrimination under any program or activity 
administered by federal or state assisted programs and services, or activities; and 

WHEREAS, non-compliance with this mandate can affect federal financial 
assistance; and 

WHEREAS, Lewis County makes every effort to guarantee non-discrimination 
in all of its programs and activities, whether those programs and activities are 
federally funded or not, and every effort will be made to ensure that no person is 
excluded from participation in or denied benefits of its services based on race, color, 
or national origin. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 

Section 1. The Lewis County Board of Legislators hereby adopts the attached 
Lewis County Title VI Pro.gram Plan and hereby designates Human Resources 
Director/Personnel Officer Caitlyn Smith as Title VI Coordinator for Lewis County. 

Section 2. The within resolution shall take effect immediately. 

Moved by Legislator_, seconded by Legislator_, and adopted. 

Page 27 of 41



RESOLUTION NO. - 2024

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A WAIVER REQUEST FOR A CONFLICT OF 

INTEREST BETWEEN SNOW BELT HOUSING COMPANY, INC. AND ELIGIBLE 

REHABILITATION GRANT RECIPIENT 

Introduced by Legislator Thomas Osborne, Chair of the Finance & Rules 
Committee. 

WHEREAS, Lewis County ("County") is a recipient of a Small Cities 
Community Development Block Grant (Lewis County 636HR300-23) which provides 
rehabilitation assistance to income eligible homeowners in the County; and 

WHEREAS, Snow Belt Housing Company, Inc. ("Snow Belt") is a not-for-profit 
corporation organized under the laws of New York State, with offices located at 
7500 South State Street, Lowville, New York 13367, which acts as a sub-recipient 
to the County by administering said Grant; and 

WHEREAS, the Office of Community Renewal (OCR) Grant Manual requires 
that under the CDBG program, an applicant who may have a conflict of interest may 
need a waiver in order to participate in the CDGB funded activity. Where the 
municipality that has received CDBG assistance determines, after a public hearing, 
that a conflict of interest exists but authorizes a waiver, a request for the waiver 
must be submitted by the local municipality to OCR prior to undertaking any activity 
on the application under the Grant funds; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the procedures outlined in the OCR Grant 
Manual for exceptions to conflicts of interest, the local government entity, i.e. the 
County of Lewis Board of Legislators, authorized by Resolution, a Notice of a Public 
Hearing to be held on August 6, 2024 to receive public comment on a conflict of 
interest posed by Snow Belt Housing Company, Inc. and two employees who have 
applied for and who are otherwise financially eligible for a CDBG housing 
rehabilitation grant, but for the conflict of interest as employees of the company; 
and 

WHEREAS, in further accordance with the Grant Manual procedures, the 
Lewis County Board of Legislators advertised the Notice of the Public Hearing in 
the official paper of the County and posted said Notice in the County building. On 
September 3, 2024 at 5:00 pm, the Board held the public hearing. During the public 
hearing, the Board considered the comments of those wishing to be heard; and 

WHEREAS, the Lewis County Board of Legislators has considered any 
comments from the public together with the information provided by Snow Belt 
Housing Company, Inc., the opinion of the County Attorney, and the factors to be 
considered by OCR for exceptions in accordance with 24 CFR 570.489(h), and 

Page 28 of 41



makes the following Findings and Conclusions in determining that a waiver should 
be requested. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, as follows: 

Section 1. That the Lewis County Board of Legislators, in accordance with the 
OCR CDBG Grant Manual procedures, advertised the Notice of the Public Hearing in 
the official paper of the County and posted said Notice in the County building. On 
September 3, 2024 at 5:00 pm, the Board held the public hearing. During the public 
hearing, the Board considered the comments of those wishing to be heard and 
considered all steps to mitigate same, namely that Snow Belt requires CDBG 
applicants to fill out a conflict of interest disclosure form (using sample forms 
provided by OCR} to identify any conflicts. In this matter, the applicant filled out 
the form and disclosed that both intended applicants are employed by Snow Belt, 
but neither are employed in the department that grants the CDBG funding. 

Section 2. That the Lewis County Board of Legislators, in accordance with 
the OCR Grant Manual, specifically addressed and considered the applicability of 
each enumerated factor set forth in subparagraph (5) of 24 CFR 570.489(h} in 
determining whether a waiver should be requested and ultimately granted by the 
State, and finds based upon legal opinion of the County Attorney: 

i. The waiver would provide a significant cost benefit to the rehabilitation
program and project in Lewis County; 

ii. Open competitive bidding for rehabilitation of the property is provided and
not affected by the requested waiver; 

iii. The person(s) affected are low or moderate- income persons intended to
benefit from this grant program. The waiver/exception will permit these persons to 
be considered and potentially receive generally the same benefit being made 
available to the same eligible class of citizens in Lewis County. In fact, to deny the 
exception/waiver would punish the eligible people, but for their employment at 
Snow Belt; 

iv. The applicants are not members of the Snow Belt sub-committee charged
with the review and decision recommendation on this application. 

v. Undue hardship will result not only to the otherwise eligible applicants but
also to the CDBG grant programs in Lewis County in general, if such a waiver is not 
considered and granted. Lewis County is a small, rural County with familial 
relationships in all sectors of Government. This program is designed to assist 
residents based upon income eligibility and need. The applicants satisfy all 
eligibility requirements of the Grant and should not be disadvantaged because of 
their employment with Snow Belt. The general public interest served by attempting 

Page 29 of 41



to avoid conflicts of interest is not served in this instance and in fact creates undue 
hardship. 

vi. The procedures and policies adopted by Snow Belt Housing Company, Inc.
to identify and address potential conflicts of interest are consistent with the 
County's ethics procedures. The benefit of the financial assistance to these 
otherwise eligible applicants far outweighs the conflict of interest posed by the 
place of employment. 

Section 3. That the Lewis County Board of Legislators authorizes the Chair 
of the Board or the Vice-Chair in his absence, to execute a formal, written request, 
together with any other required documents, to OCR as set forth in 24 CFR 
570.589(h) (4), for a waiver of the conflict of interest posed by the employment 
status of the 2 otherwise eligible applicants with Snow Belt Housing for a housing 
rehabilitation assistance grant under the CDBG program. 

Section 4. That the Lewis County Board of Legislators directs the County 
Attorney to submit an opinion letter to OCR stating that the interest for which the 
exception/waiver is sought does not violate state or local law and include the 
enumerated factors set forth in 24 CFR 590.489 (h). 

Section 5. That the Lewis County Board of Legislators directs that the Clerk 
of the Board provide to OCR the minutes of the public meeting and hearing at which 
disclosure of the conflict was discussed and decided, a copy of the notice of the 
public hearing, together with a certified copy of this Resolution. 

Section 6. That the within resolution shall take effect immediately. 

Moved by Legislator_, seconded by Legislator_, and adopted. 

Page 30 of 41



RESOLUTION NO. - 2024

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING RENEWAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY 

OF LEWIS AND THE ARC, ONEIDA-LEWIS CHAPTER, NYSARC, INC FOR 

TRANSPORTATION SERVICES. 

Introduced by Legislator Thomas Osborne, Chair of the Finance & Rules 
Committee. 

WHEREAS, Lewis County on behalf of the Planning Department and The Arc, 
Oneida-Lewis Chapter, NYSARC, INC. ("ARC") entered into a three-year agreement 
ending on December 31, 2024 to provide for ARC clients to ride fixed routes in 
exchange for ARC agreeing to pay the estimated cost of the routes minus the 
estimated State Operating Assistance (STOA) reimbursement funds applied for by 
the County; and 

WHEREAS, the ARC and County seek to enter into a four (4) year renewal 
Agreement for ARC clients to ride these fixed routes in exchange for the ARC 
agreeing to pay the cost of $251,414.48 ($20,951.21 per month) in 2025; $273,361.73 
($22,780.14 per month) in 2026; $296,772.13 ($24,731.01 per month) in 2027; 
$321,645.68 ($26,803.81 per month) in 2028. The County will continue to apply for 
STOA reimbursement funds for each ARC rider on fixed routes, and provide for 
potential expansion of routes and opportunities for all residents of the County; and 

WHEREAS, the agreement will also provide for the ARC to reimburse the 
County at a rate of $30.00/hr in 2025, $31.50/hr in 2026, $33.08/hr in 2027, and 
$34.73/hr in 2028 for any ARC client requiring a bus aide. The agreement between 
the County and Birnie Bus provides for this service if required; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, as follows: 

Section 1. That the Lewis County Board of Legislators hereby authorizes a 
renewal Agreement between the County, by and through the Planning Department's 
LCPT and the ARC, to provide public transportation services on the LCPT's fixed 
routes for a four-year period, in consideration of the ARC reimbursing the County for 
the costs of the Fixed Routes and Lowville Loop, post estimated STOA 
reimbursement, at a cost of $251,414.48 ($20,951.21 per month) in 2025; $273,361.73 
($22,780.14 per month) in 2026; $296,772.13 ($24,731.01 per month) in 2027; 
$321,645.68 ($26,803.81 per month) in 2028. In addition, the County is to receive 
reimbursement at a rate of $30.00/hr in 2025, $31.50/hr in 2026, $33.08/hr in 2027, 
and $34.73/hr in 2028 for any ARC client requiring a bus aide. 

Section 2. That the Chair, or Vice-Chair, of the Board of Legislators is hereby 
authorized to make, execute, seal and deliver such renewal Agreement, upon such 
form and terms as may be approved by the County Attorney. 

Page 31 of 41



Section 3. That the within resolution shall take effect immediately. 

Moved by Legislator_, seconded by Legislator_, and adopted. 

Page 32 of 41



RESOLUTION NO. - 2024

RESOLUTION AWARDING BID AND AUTHORIZING AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE COUNTY OF LEWIS AND BIRNIE BUS SERVICE, INC. 

FOR TRANSPORTATION SERVICES IN LEWIS COUNTY 

Introduced by Legislator Thomas Osborne, Chair of the Finance & Rules 
Committee. 

WHEREAS, the Lewis County Planning and Community Development 
Department ("Planning Department") recently sent out a Request for Proposals for 
interested and qualified vendors to provide management, operation, and 
maintenance services for the County's Coordinated Public Transportation System 
according to the terms and specifications as set forth in the RFP; and 

WHEREAS, the Director of Planning, Community Development Program 
Specialist, Director of Purchasing, and Clerk of the Board, were present on July 22, 
2024, at 2:00 p.m. to open the one (1) response to the RFP; and 

WHEREAS, after review and consideration of the proposal, the Director of 
Planning recommends awarding the bid to Birnie Bus Service, Inc., the sole bidder, in 
accordance with the specifications and scope of work set forth in the RFP and Bid 
Documents; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Legislators seeks to award the bid to Birnie Bus 
Service, Inc. and authorizes a four (4) year agreement for the specified services to be 
provided in accordance with the RFP; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, as follows: 

Section 1. That the Lewis County Board of Legislators hereby authorizes and 
approves an Agreement with Birnie Bus Service, Inc., 248 Otis Street, Rome, New 
York 13440 to provide management, operation, and maintenance services for the 
County's Coordinated Public Transportation System according to the terms and 
specifications as set forth in the RFP. 

Section 2. That the Lewis County Board of Legislators authorizes said 
agreement to include all conditions and requirements set forth in the RFP together 
with the inclusion of any and all additional terms and conditions recommended by the 
County Attorney, commencing January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2028, with an 
option to extend for an additional three (3) years upon mutual agreement, at the 
following rates; payable from NYS STOA funds, FTA Formal Grants for Rural Areas 
5311 program funds, and other revenue sources initiated by the County under its 
transportation system: 

Page 33 of 41



Cost Proposal 2025 2026 2027 2028 
Per Mile Rate 

Route Services $2.99 $3.14 $3.30 $3.47 
Dial-A-Ride $2.99 $3.14 $3.30 $3.47 
Services 
NEMT Services $1.50 $1.58 $1.66 $1.74 

Per Hour Rate 
Bus Aide $30.00 $31.50 $33.08 $34.73 

Annual Budget Proposal 
(Estimated based on per-mile rate and 2023 ridership) 

Route Services $1,043,597.00 $1,095,951.00 $1,151,796.00 $1,211,131.00 
Dial-A-Ride $134,039.00 $140,673.00 $147,936.00 $155,557.00 
Services 
NEMT Services $6,200.00 $6,530.00 $6,861.00 $7,191.00 

Section 3. That the Chair or Vice-Chair of the Board of Legislators is hereby 
authorized to make, execute, seal and deliver such Agreement and any amendments 
thereto, upon review and approval by the County Attorney. 

Section 4. That the within resolution shall take effect immediately. 

Moved by Legislator_, seconded by Legislator_, and adopted. 

Page 34 of 41



RESOLUTION NO. - 2024

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE LEWIS COUNTY TREASURER'S OFFICE TO 

INCREASE FEES FOR TAX SEARCHES 

Introduced by Legislator Thomas Osborne, Chair of the Finance & Rules 
Committee. 

WHEREAS, the Lewis County Treasurer's Office has not changed the fee 
imposed on Tax Searches for at least 20 years; and 

WHEREAS, it is common practice of other New York Counties to charge a 
more substantial, flat fee for Tax Searches; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, as follows: 

Section l. That the Lewis County Board of Legislators hereby establishes and 
declares that the Lewis County Treasurer's Office is authorized to charge a fee of 
$20 per tax search performed. 

Section 2. That the within Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

Moved by Legislator , seconded by Legislator , and adopted. 
- ' •• -

Page 35 of 41



LEWIS 
C@UNTY 

OFFICE OF THE 

COUNTY CLERK 

7660 North State St. 

Lowville, NY 13367 

P: 315-376-5333 

F: 315-376-3768 

Jake Moser 

County Clerk 

clerk(a)lewiscounty.ny.gov 

JoAnn Walters 

Deputy County Clerk 

joannwalters(a)lewiscounty.ny.gov 

NEW YORK 

JULY 2024-Monthly Report 

• DMV had a total of 2,224 in-office transactions for the Month of July.
• Lewis County DMV had a total of 1,309 online transactions which brought in an

additional $7,591.48 for the month of July.
• Lewis County Clerk's Office successfully back scanned 119 old Certificate of

Incorporation for the public computers and online record access.
• Completed my budget meeting on 7/29/2024 with Ryan, Eric, and Tim.

Budget Report 

2024REVISED YTD EXPENSE 2024 REVISED GROSS YTD 
EXPENSE REVENUE REVENUE 

NETYTD 
REVENUE 

$690,583.00 $355,122.67 $748,500.00 $429,573.95 $74,451.28 

DMV Transactions and Revenue to Lewis County 

PLATES PLATES SNOWMOBILE ATV EDL TOTAL 
ISSUED SURRENDERED REVENUE 

426 322 66 79 113 $14,257.50 

Clerk's Office Transactions and Revenue to Lewis County 

DEEDS MORTGAGES COURT PISTOL BUSINESS TOTAL 
DOCKET TRANSACTIONS CERTIFICATES REVENUE 

LIST 

93 112 746 81 13 $109,600.62 

7660 North State Street• Lowville, NY 13367 • 315-377-2000 • lewiscountyny.gov 

Lewis County is an equal opportunity provider and employer. Complaints of discrimination should be made known to the Lewis County Board of Legislators. 

Page 36 of 41



LEWIS 
Cw>UNTY 

NEW YORK 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

315-377-2008

Conner Biolsi 

Director 

connerbiolsi@llewiscounty.ny.gov 

Monthly Report to Legislators 
JULY 2024 - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

Updates 
IT continues to work alongside a few departments for new software deployments. HR's 
NeoGov, Cloud Permit with Codes, and improvements to AP credit card processes with the 
Treasurer. In addition, the department has officially begun the Microsoft licensing upgrade 
project. 

Crowdstrike Outage 
On Friday, July 19th

, there was a significant incident involving CrowdStrike, an American 
cybersecurity company. They distributed a faulty update to their Falcon Sensor security 
software. Unfortunately, this update caused widespread problems for Microsoft Windows 
computers running the software. The global impact was substantial: airplanes were 
grounded, access to banking systems was cut off, major healthcare networks were 
disrupted, and even a news network went off the air. Microsoft estimates that 
approximately 8.5 million Windows devices were affected. Some sources estimate Billions 
of dollars of damage was done worldwide due to service outages. The faulty update led to 
immediate crashes upon booting up, displaying the infamous Blue Screen of Death (BS0D). 

This event affected a significant potion Lewis County computer systems. Most were 
remediated by 9am on Friday morning while the remaining-5% of systems had more 
difficult resolution steps or had ties to NYS systems. By Monday morning, the DMV was 
reopened and by Tuesday, all Lewis County systems were operational. 

Budget 
The IT department is meeting with all departments to discuss technology needs for the 
following budget year. This is part of an ongoing effort to increase visibility and efficiency 
of Lewis County's technology spending and simplifying the financial processes surrounding 
software and licensing. 

Thank you,

Conner Biolsi 

7660 North State Street• Lowville, NY 13367 • 315-377-2000 • lewiscountyny.gov 

Lewis County is an equal opportunity provider and employer. Complaints of discrimination should be made known to the Lewis County Board of Legislators. 

Page 37 of 41



LEWIS 
CQUNTY 

PLANNING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

Phone: 315-376-5422 

NEW YORK 

Casandra Buell 

Director 

casandrabuell(_a)lewiscounty.ny.gov 

TO: Finance and Rules Committee 
SUBJECT: August 20, 2024 Committee Meeting Report ➔ September 3, 2024 BOL Meeting 

Dockets 
■ Authorize Agreement with The Arc, Oneida-Lewis Chapter for Transportation Services
■ Award 2025-2028 Lewis County Transportation System Management, Operation and Maintenance

Contract to Birnie Bus Services.
■ Authorize Granting Waiver for Conflict of Interest between Snow Belt Housing and an Eligible

Rehabilitation Grant Recipient.

Lewis County Planning Board 
Area 2024 No referrals were received for the August 15th meeting 

Varian e 239-M REVIEWS 
Department Updates 1'% 

■ Finalized contract with the Village of Lyons Falls to utilize our CWSSI
Rezoning 

funding to launch the Civally website and use secure Microsoft email 22% 
addresses.

Special 
■ Assisting NYS DHSES and SBA officials with flood damage Use 

assessments and launching a Disaster Loan Outreach Center (DLOC). Permits & 
■ Received notice of Lewis County's $1.724 million award for the Site Plan

rehabilitation and redevelopment of Lyons Falls Elementary School. Reviews ... 
■ Completed and submitted two (2) CFA applications for funding to

Special Use 
Permits 

17% 

Site Plan 
Reviews 

33% 

update the 2009 Lewis County Comprehensive Plan and towards the rehabilitation of the Lyons Falls
Elementary School.

■ Developing a CDBG Vacant Property Clearance Program application for several vacant/condemned
properties in Lewis County.

■ Continuing to assist the Village of Lowville with the development of their ORI Strategic Investment
Plan and working with project sponsors to develop their applications.

■ Preparing for the launch of Round 4 of the Fac;ade and Streetscape Improvement Program set for
September 2nd 

■ Finalizing projects with Clarkson University Interns to verify Ag District Mapping data, develop Solar
Overlay Maps, and a variety of municipal infrastructure mapping.

■ As of July 30th
, YTD we have received 7 State Septic Replacement Fund Applications totaling $57,190 

■ Finalizing the Lewis County Complete Streets Plan
■ Grace Metzler, Grant Coordinator, joined our team on August 5th 

Public Transportation
■ Participated in the Croghan Old Home Days Parade and conducted outreach at the Lewis County Fair
■ Preparing for the 3-year 5311 Review with NYS DOT scheduled in September
■ Continue to partner with Jefferson County DSS to provide transportation for clients on the JCC Connector

Route.
■ Working with Via to complete a grant application for the NYSERDA Clean Mobility Program grant
■ Attended the NYSAMM Conference in Ithaca
■ Assisted with the Lewis County Fair Shuttle, Summer Recreation Transportation (up to 7 trips per day),

and Camp High Hopes Transportation.
■ Transit App Insights: New Users: 48; Total Users in June: 553
■ Total July Ridership: 7,244 - An increase of 22% from July 2023

Budget: 
2024 budget for 8020-Planning and 5630-Bus Operations are on target 

7660 North State Street• Lowville, NY 13367 • 315-377-2000 • lewiscountyny.gov 

Lewis County is an equal opportunity provider and employer. Complaints of discrimination should be made known to the Lewis County Board of Legislators. 

Page 38 of 41



LEWIS 
cguNTY 

NEW YORK 

August 2024 Purchasing Department Report 

Purchasing is currently obtaining pricing on the following items: 

PURCHASING 

P: 315-376-5144 I F: 315-376-4917 

Brian Hanno 

Purchasing Director 

brianhanno(@lewiscounty.ny.gov 

Demolition of a House on the Osceola Road that is in the highway right of way. 

The Capital Budget for 2025 is underway, and I have met with all departments and will 

have a draft version at the September committee meeting. 

I have been working with the Solid Waste department to develop an equipment 

replacement plan that will allow to serve the residents of Lewis County much more 

efficiently. 

August will wrap up meetings with Enterprise to develop our 2025 fleet plan which will be 

part of the Capital Budget. 

As always, please reach out if you have any questions. 

Brian Hanno 

Lewis County Purchasing Director 

7660 North State Street• Lowville, NY 13367 • 315-377-2000 • lewiscountyny.gov 

Lewis County is an equal opportunity provider and employer. Complaints of discrimination should be made known to the Lewis County Board of Legislators. 

Page 39 of 41



LEWIS 
C UNTY 

NE\N YORK 

Budget Report: 

August 2024 

52.5% of the 2024 department budget has been used. 

New Business: 

REAL PROPERTY TAX SERVICES 

P: 315-376-5336 

Candy Akin, CCD 

Director 

candyakin@)lewiscounty.ny.gov 

The Real Property Systems Specialist position has been filled. Interviews are taking place now for 
the E911/Data Collector position, and I am hopeful that I can have that position refilled by the end 
of the month. 

School tax preparation is underway, we have started to receive tax warrants and rates from the 
school districts. Harrisville School district is offering a two-installment payment option for the 
2024 collection year, so we have been working with TCS to develop a new tax bill layout for the 
school. 

The 2024 county equalization rate was finalized at 74.86% on August 7, 2024. The towns of 
Croghan, Lewis, Lowville, and Turin have committed to town revaluations for 2025. This should 
help increase the county equalization rate for 2025. 

Final roll corrections have been processed in July resulting in an increase in the county taxable 
value of $5,062,060. An updated taxable value chart will be supplied to the budget officers this 
month. 

There were four Small Claims Assessment Review (SCAR) petitions filed from property owners in 
the town of Martinsburg, and two Tax Certioraris filed against the town of Denmark. 

Sales: 

Sales are continually updated and are posted on the website around the 1st of each month. For the 
month of July, 93 transfers were processed consisting of 108 parcels, of which 9 were split parcel 
transfers. Unfortunately, the sales were not updated to the website in July but have since been 
updated for August. 

911: 

We have assigned and/or corrected 20 numbers since the July 2024 report. 

End of Report 

7660 North State Street• LowviUe, NY 13367 • 315-377-2000 • lewiscountyny.gov 

Lewis County is an equal opportunity provider and employer. Complaints of discrimination should be made known to the Lewis County Board of Legislators. 

Page 40 of 41



LEWIS 
Cw>UNTY 

WORKERS COMPENSATION DEPARTMENT 

P: 315-376-5356 F: 315-376-5445 

NEW YORK 

Workers' Compensation 
July 2024 Report 

EXPENDITURES 7 /1/24-7 /31/24 

Administration $ 12,925.33 

Compensation & Medical Payments $ 84,813.91 

WCB Assessments $ -

REVENUE 

State Reimbursements/Refunds $ -

C.D. Interest* $ -

*reported on a yearly basis

No. of incidents reported in July: 4 

Total No. of current year incidents: 34 

Cassandra Moser 

Administrator 

cassandramoser@lewiscounty.ny.gov 

TOTAL TO DATE %USED 

$ 160.427.88 87.86% 

$ 460,476.24 58.29% 

$ 56,319.62 35.20% 

$ 26,094.60 20.88% 

0.00% 

Number of claims with Compensation Payments 

Fire Departments 

Courthouse/DMV 

Highway 

Hospital 

Nursing Home 

Public Health 

Search & Rescue 

Sheriff 

Social Services 

Solid Waste 

Towns 

Villages 

0 1 2 3 

New Claims ■ Old Claims

4 5 6 

7660 North State Street· Lowville, NY 13367 • 315-377-2000 • lewiscountyny.gov 

7 

Lewis County is an equal opprotunity provider and employer. Complaints of discrimination shoul dbe make known to the Lewis County Beard of Legislators 

Page 41 of 41




